
  
 

 
 
 

 

Tuesday, January 26, 2016  
 

 
5:00 PM Council Work Session 

1. Call to Order 

2. Agenda Amendments/Approval 

3. Public Comments –Agenda Items Only 

4. Public Hearing 

a. Issuance of General Obligation Public Improvement Bonds 

5. Introductions and Special Presentations 

a. SCADA Project Update 

6. Items For Discussion 

a. Revenue Sources Discussion (FY2017 Budget) 

b. Zoning Ordinance Amendment (Keeping of Chickens) 

c. Procurement of new Solid Waste Truck 

d. American Legion Post 36 – Purple Heart monument  

 

7. Items Scheduled for the Regular Meeting Agenda 

8. Project Updates 

9. Public Comments – Comments are limited to three (3) minutes per speaker. 

10. Adjournment 

 

NEXT SCHEDULED REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING:    TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 9, 2016 @ 7:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Town of Altavista 
 

Town Council  
Work Session Agenda 

J.R. “Rudy” Burgess Town Hall 
510 7th Street 

Altavista, VA  24517 

Notice to comply with Americans with Disabilities Act:  Special assistance is available for disabled persons addressing Town Council. 
Efforts will be made to provide adaptations or accommodations based on individual needs of qualified individuals with disability, 
provided that reasonable advance notification has been received by the Town Clerk’s Office.  For assistance, please contact the Town 
Clerk’s Office, Town of Altavista, 510 Seventh Street, Altavista, VA  24517 or by calling (434) 369-5001. 
 
Thank you for taking the time to participate in your Town Council meeting.  The Mayor and Members of Council invite and 
encourage you to attend whenever possible because good government depends on the interest and involvement of citizens. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

             
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 Meeting Date:  January 26, 2015 
 
 

Agenda Item:  Public Hearing – Issuance of General Obligation Public Improvement Bonds 
 
Summary:   Over the past year, the Town of Altavista has been working towards having the Main 
Street Waterline Improvements (Project 1B) work designed, bid and constructed.   Town Council 
approved the awarding of the project to low bidder, E.C. Pace, Inc.  At this time Council will conduct 
a public hearing on the potential issuance of General Obligation Public Improvement Bonds which 
were received previously from requests from banks.   The debt service would have a maximum 
principal amount of $2,750,000 and would be utilized for the waterline improvement project, as well 
as the storm water component that was added to the project.   
 
Raymond James and Associates conducted the RFP process to request bank bids to fund the General  
Obligation debt issuance not to exceed $2,750,000.  The bank bids were discussed with Council at it’s  
December 22, 2015 Work Session.  I have attached the page from the report issued by Raymond 
James that outlines the bank bids that were received. In order to facilitate this financing, staff has 
worked with Raymond James and bond counsel to prepare the attached parameters resolution that will 
allow the Town Manager, in collaboration with the Financial Advisor and bond counsel, to execute an 
obligation with a Principal amount not to exceed $2,750,000.  Staff recommends the 20-year term 
from Carter Bank & Trust.  
 
During the process of reviewing bank bids, the idea of possibly refinancing our existing debt (Series 
2014 Bond) was discussed.  Carter Bank and Trust opted not to re-finance our existing debt that they 
currently hold, accordingly we discussed the refinancing with the other banks.  First National Bank of 
Altavista is agreeable to refinance our existing debt (current rate 3.3%) at a new rate of 2.75%.   This 
will create an annual savings to the Town of Altavista, after expenses, of approximately $10,000 while 
keeping the original loan term (18 ½ years remaining).  The Town would have an annual principal 
payment beginning July 15, 2016 and semi-annual interest payments on January 15 and July 15, 
commencing July 15, 2016.   Accordingly, staff proposes that the Town refinance the existing Carter 
Bank and Trust debt with First National Bank of Altavista.     
 
Budget/Funding:  New debt service $178,075, Existing Debt Service will be reduced by 
approximately $10,000 annually. 
 
Legal Evaluation:  The Town Attorney will be available to address legal issues. 
 
Attachments:  Staff Memo (December Work Session), Bank Bid Summary, Ordinance, Resolution for 
Issuance of General Obligation Bonds; Form of Bond-Series 2016 [A/B]; Term Sheet First National 
Bank Refinancing; Refund Series 2014 Bond      
 
 
The two following motions would be needed to issue the debt and consider the refinancing: 

Town of Altavista, Virginia 
Work Session Agenda Form 

 
 



Town Council Work Session Agenda Form – Public Hearings – Issuance of General Obligation Bonds – Page 2 

 
Possible Motion(s):      
 
The two following motions would be needed to issue the debt and consider the refinancing: 

 
“I move that the Town Council approve the Ordinance in regard to issuance of General 
Obligation Bonds in the not to exceed amount of $2,750,000 in order to finance utility 
improvements and associated bond issuance costs.  I further authorize the Town Manager, 
Town Treasurer, Town Attorney and Town Clerk to sign all needed financial forms related to 
this transaction.” 

 
 
“I move that the Town Council approve the attached Resolution in regard to issuance of the 
General Obligation Bonds in the not to exceed amount of $2,750,000 in order to finance utility 
improvements and associated bonds issuance costs, as well as the refinancing the Town’s 
existing debt (Series 2014 Bond) with First National Bank of Altavista.   I further authorize the 
Town Manager, Town Treasurer, Town Attorney and Town Clerk to sign all needed financial 
forms related to these transactions.” 
 
 
 























 

 

COVERING CERTIFICATE FOR ORDINANCE 

The undersigned Town Clerk of the Town of Altavista, Virginia (the “Town”), certifies 
as follows: 

1. Attached hereto is a true, correct and complete copy of an ordinance entitled 
“ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION PUBLIC 
IMPROVEMENT BONDS OF THE TOWN OF ALTAVISTA, VIRGINIA, IN A PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2,750,000” (the “Ordinance”).  The Ordinance was adopted at a 
regular meeting of the Town Council of the Town (the “Council”) held on January 26, 2016, by a 
majority of all members of the Council by a roll-call vote. 

2. The Council meeting at which the Ordinance was adopted was held at the time 
and place established by the Council for its regular meetings. 

3. The minutes of such meeting reflect the attendance of the members and their 
votes on the Ordinance as follows: 

Member Attendance 
(Present/Absent) 

Vote 
(Aye/Nay/Abstain) 

Micki Brumfield   
Beverley Dalton   
Charles Edwards   
Tracy Emerson   
Tim George   
James H. Higginbotham   
Michael E. Mattox   

 
4. The Ordinance has not been repealed, revoked, rescinded or amended and is in 

full force and effect on the date hereof. 

  WITNESS my signature and the seal of the Town of Altavista, Virginia this _____ day of 
January, 2016. 
 

 
(SEAL)                                                                ______________________________________ 

 Town Clerk, Town of Altavista, Virginia 



 

 

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL 
OBLIGATION PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT BONDS OF THE TOWN 
OF ALTAVISTA, VIRGINIA, IN A PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT 
TO EXCEED $2,750,000 

WHEREAS, the Town of Altavista, Virginia (the “Town”), desires to finance capital 
improvements related to the Town’s water, sewer and stormwater systems (the “Project”); 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
ALTAVISTA, VIRGINIA: 

1. It is determined to be necessary and expedient for the Town to finance the Project 
and to borrow funds for such purpose and issue the Town’s general obligation public 
improvement bonds to obtain such funds. 

2. Pursuant to the Public Finance Act of 1991 and the Town Charter, there are 
authorized to be issued general obligation public improvement bonds of the Town in a principal 
amount not to exceed $2,750,000 to provide funds, together with other available funds, to 
finance the Project. 

3. The bonds shall bear such date or dates, mature at such time or times not 
exceeding 40 years from their date or dates, bear interest at such rate or rates, be in such 
denominations and form, be executed in such manner and be sold at such time or times and in 
such manner as the Town Council of the Town may hereafter provide by appropriate resolution 
or resolutions. 

4. The bonds shall be general obligations of the Town, and its full faith and credit 
shall be irrevocably pledged to the payment of principal of and premium, if any, and interest on 
such bonds. 

5. The Town Clerk, in collaboration with the Town Attorney, is authorized and 
directed to see to the immediate filing of a certified copy of this Ordinance in the Circuit Court 
of Campbell County, Virginia. 

6. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately. 

 
 
 
 



COVERING CERTIFICATE FOR RESOLUTION 

The undersigned Town Clerk of the Town of Altavista, Virginia (the “Town), certifies as 
follows: 

1. Attached hereto is a true, correct and complete copy of a resolution entitled 
“RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE, SALE AND AWARD OF ONE OR 
MORE SERIES OF GENERAL OBLIGATION PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AND 
REFUNDING BONDS OF THE TOWN OF ALTAVISTA, VIRGINIA, HERETOFORE 
AUTHORIZED, AND PROVIDING FOR THE FORM, DETAILS AND PAYMENT 
THEREOF” (the “Resolution”).  The Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Town 
Council of the Town (the “Council”) held on January 26, 2016, by a majority of all members of 
the Council by a roll-call vote. 

2. The Council meeting at which the Resolution was adopted was held at the time 
and place established by the Council for its regular meetings. 

3. The minutes of such meeting reflect the attendance of the members and their 
votes on the Resolution as follows: 

Member Attendance 
(Present/Absent) 

Vote 
(Aye/Nay/Abstain) 

Micki Brumfield   
Beverley Dalton   
Charles Edwards   
Tracy Emerson   
Tim George   
James H. Higginbotham   
Michael E. Mattox   

 
4. The Resolution has not been repealed, revoked, rescinded or amended and is in 

full force and effect on the date hereof. 

  WITNESS my signature and the seal of the Town of Altavista, Virginia this _____ day of 
January, 2016. 
 

 
(SEAL)                                                                ______________________________________ 

 Town Clerk, Town of Altavista, Virginia 



2 

RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE, SALE 
AND AWARD OF ONE OR MORE SERIES OF GENERAL 
OBLIGATION PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AND 
REFUNDING BONDS OF THE TOWN OF ALTAVISTA, 
VIRGINIA, HERETOFORE AUTHORIZED, AND 
PROVIDING FOR THE FORM, DETAILS AND PAYMENT 
THEREOF 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council (the “Council”) of the Town of Altavista, Virginia (the 
“Town”), by an ordinance adopted on January 26, 2016, has authorized the issuance of general 
obligation public improvement bonds in the maximum principal amount of $2,750,000 to finance 
capital improvements related to the Town’s water, sewer and stormwater systems, including 
without limitation the costs to extend, replace and improve the Town’s water and stormwater 
lines (the “Project”); 

WHEREAS, the Council desires to issue a series of general obligation public 
improvement bonds in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $2,750,000 (the “2016A 
Bond”) to finance the Project and to pay the related costs of issuance; 

WHEREAS, a representative of Raymond James & Associates, Inc., the Town’s 
financial advisor (the “Financial Advisor”), has recommended that the Town issue and sell the 
2016A Bond through a private placement with a qualified banking or financial institution; 

WHEREAS, the Financial Advisor, on behalf of the Town, has solicited bids for the 
purchase of the 2016A Bond, and three bids have been received; 

WHEREAS, the Financial Advisor has reviewed such bids and, after consultation with 
officials of the Town, has advised that the bid of Carter Bank & Trust (the “2016A Purchaser”) 
offers to purchase the 2016A Bond upon the most favorable terms to the Town; 

WHEREAS, the Town has outstanding its $4,100,000 General Obligation Public 
Improvement Bond, Series 2014 (the “2014 Bond”), issued on September 30, 2014; 

WHEREAS, the Financial Advisor has advised that the Town may be able to realize debt 
service savings by issuing and selling a series of general obligation refunding bonds in an 
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $4,035,000 (the “2016B Bond” and, together with the 
2016A Bond, the “Bonds”) to refund all or a portion of the 2014 Bond (such refunded portion, 
the “Refunded Bond”) and to pay the costs of defeasing or refunding the Refunded Bond and the 
related costs of issuance; 

WHEREAS, the Financial Advisor has recommended to the Town to negotiate the terms 
of the refunding of the Refunded Bond and the issuance and sale of the 2016B Bond with one of 
the bidders for the purchase of the 2016A Bond; 

WHEREAS, the Council has determined to delegate to the Town Manager the authority 
to negotiate the final pricing terms of the 2016A Bond and to determine whether to issue the 
2016B Bond, and on what terms, all within the parameters set forth in this Resolution; 



3 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
ALTAVISTA, VIRGINIA: 

1. Issuance and Sale.  Pursuant to the Constitution and statutes of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia, including the Public Finance Act of 1991 and the Town Charter, the 
Council hereby provides for the issuance and sale of (a) the 2016A Bond in an aggregate 
principal amount not to exceed $2,750,000 to finance the Project and to pay the related costs of 
issuing the 2016A Bond and (b) the 2016B Bond in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed 
$4,035,000 to refund the Refunded Bond and to pay the related costs of issuing the 2016B Bond 
and refunding the Refunded Bond.  The 2016A Bond shall be issued and sold to the 2016A 
Purchaser in accordance with the terms of its bid and this Resolution.  The Council hereby 
authorizes the Town Manager to conduct negotiations with the banks bidding on the 2016A 
Bond, to determine whether any of such banks offers to refund the Refunded Bond upon terms 
favorable to the Town and, if so, to provide for the issuance and sale of the 2016B Bond in a 
direct bank placement with such bank. 

2. Bond Details.  The Council hereby authorizes the Town Manager to determine 
when and if to issue the Bonds and the final terms thereof, all as he shall deem to be in the best 
interests of the Town and subject to the following parameters.  As such, the Town Manager shall 
determine whether to issue the 2016A Bond and the 2016B Bond as separate series or as one 
combined series and shall determine the appropriate series designation(s), the dated date(s), the 
record date(s) for registration and the numbering for the Bonds.  In no circumstances shall the 
Bonds (a) be issued in principal amounts exceeding the respective limits set forth in Section 1 
above, (b) bear interest at rates exceeding 3.00%, (c) be sold at prices less than 100% of the 
original aggregate principal amount thereof or (d) be issued and sold later than December 31, 
2016.  The 2016A Bond shall have a final maturity date no later than January 15, 2036, and the 
2016B Bond shall have a final maturity date no later than July 15, 2034.  Any refunding of the 
Refunded Bond shall result in at least 3.0% net present value savings calculated by the Financial 
Advisor in accordance with industry standards.  The Council further authorizes the Town 
Manager to determine the dates on which interest on the Bonds shall be paid and the dates and 
amounts of the principal installments of the Bonds shall be paid.  Following the determination of 
the final pricing terms of the Bonds, the Council directs the Town Manager to execute a 
certificate(s) setting forth such final pricing terms and to file such certificate(s) with the records 
of the Council.  The actions of the Town Manager in selling the Bonds shall be conclusive, and 
no further action with respect to the issuance, sale and award of the Bonds shall be necessary on 
the part of the Council. 

If the date on which any payment is due with respect to the Bonds is not a Business Day 
(as hereinafter defined), the payment shall be made on the next succeeding Business Day with 
the same force and effect as if made on the nominal date of payment.  “Business Day” shall 
mean a day on which banking business is transacted, but not including a Saturday, Sunday, legal 
holiday or any other day on which banking institutions are authorized or required by law to close 
in the Commonwealth of Virginia. 

Principal and interest shall be payable by the Registrar (as hereinafter defined) by check 
or draft mailed to the registered owner at the address as it appears on the registration books kept 
by the Registrar on the last Business Day of the month preceding each interest payment date; 



4 

provided, however, at the request of the registered owner of the Bonds, payment may be made by 
wire transfer pursuant to the most recent wire instructions received by the Registrar from such 
registered owner.  Principal and interest shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of 
America. 

3. Redemption Provisions.  The Bonds may be subject to redemption prior to 
maturity at the option of the Town, in whole or in part at any time and without penalty, at a 
redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, plus interest accrued and 
unpaid to such redemption date. 

4. Pledge of Full Faith and Credit.  The full faith and credit of the Town are 
irrevocably pledged for the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds.  Unless other 
funds are lawfully available and appropriated for timely payment of the Bonds, the Council shall 
levy and collect an annual ad valorem tax, over and above all other taxes authorized or limited by 
law and without limitation as to rate or amount, on all locally taxable property within the Town 
sufficient to pay when due the principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

5. Execution and Form.  The Bonds shall be signed by the manual signature of the 
Mayor or Vice Mayor, and the Town’s seal shall be affixed thereto and attested by the manual 
signature of the Town Clerk (such term as used in this Resolution to include any Deputy or 
Assistant Clerk).  The Bonds shall be issued as typewritten bonds in substantially the form of 
Exhibit A attached hereto, with such completions, omissions, insertions and changes not 
inconsistent with this Resolution as may be approved by the Mayor or Vice Mayor, whose 
approval shall be evidenced conclusively by such officer’s execution of the Bonds and delivery 
to the purchaser thereof. 

6. Registration, Transfer and Owner of Bonds.  The Bonds shall be issued in 
registered form without coupons, payable to the registered holder or its registered assigns.  The 
Council hereby appoints the Town Treasurer as the initial paying agent and registrar for the 
Bonds (in both capacities, the “Registrar”); provided, however, the Council may at any time, in 
its sole discretion, after notice to the registered owner of the Bonds, appoint a bank or trust 
company to act as successor Registrar for the Bonds.  The Registrar shall maintain registration 
books for the registration and exchange of the Bonds.  Upon presentation and surrender of the 
Bonds to the office of the Registrar, together with an assignment duly executed by the registered 
owner or its duly authorized attorney or legal representative in such form as shall be satisfactory 
to the Registrar, the Town shall execute and deliver in exchange a new Bond or Bonds having an 
equal aggregate principal amount, of the same form and maturity, bearing interest at the same 
rate and registered in the name(s) as requested by the then registered owner or its duly authorized 
attorney or legal representative.  Any such exchange shall be at the expense of the Town, except 
that the Registrar may charge the person requesting such exchange the amount of any tax or 
governmental charge required to be paid with respect thereto. 

The Registrar shall treat the registered owner as the person exclusively entitled to 
payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds and the exercise of all other rights and powers 
of the owner, except that interest payments shall be made to the person or entity shown as owner 
on the registration books on the last Business Day of the month preceding each payment date.  



5 

7. Preparation and Delivery of the Bonds.  The officers of the Town are hereby 
authorized and directed to take all proper steps to have the Bonds prepared and executed in 
accordance with their terms and to deliver the Bonds to the purchasers upon payment therefor. 

8. Mutilated, Lost or Destroyed Bonds.  If one or both Bonds has been mutilated, 
lost or destroyed, the Town officers authorized under Section 5 above to execute the original 
Bonds shall execute and deliver a new Bond of like date and tenor in exchange and substitution 
for, and upon cancellation of, such mutilated Bond or in lieu of and in substitution for such lost 
or destroyed Bond; provided, however, that such Town officers shall so execute and deliver only 
if the registered owner has paid the reasonable expenses and charges of the Town in connection 
therewith and, in the case of a lost or destroyed Bond, (a) has filed with the Town evidence 
satisfactory to such Town officers that such Bond was lost or destroyed and (b) has furnished to 
the Town satisfactory indemnity. 

9. Arbitrage Covenants.   (a) The Town represents that there have not been issued, 
and covenants that there will not be issued, any obligations that will be treated as part of the 
same issue of obligations as the Bonds within the meaning of Treasury Regulations Section 
1.150-1(c). 

(b) The Town covenants that it shall not take or omit to take any action the taking or 
omission of which will cause the Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of Section 
148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), or otherwise cause interest 
on the Bonds to be includable in the gross income of the registered owner thereof under existing 
law.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Town shall comply with any provision 
of law that may require the Town at any time to rebate to the United States any part of the 
earnings derived from the investment of the gross proceeds of the Bonds, unless the Town 
receives an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel that such compliance is not required 
to prevent interest on the Bonds from being includable in the gross income of the registered 
owners thereof under existing law.  The Town shall pay any such required rebate from its legally 
available funds. 

10. Non-Arbitrage Certificate and Elections.  Such officers of the Town as may be 
requested by the Town’s bond counsel are hereby authorized and directed to execute an 
appropriate certificate setting forth (a) the expected use and investment of the proceeds of the 
Bonds in order to show that such expected use and investment will not violate the provisions of 
Section 148 of the Code and regulations issued pursuant thereto and (b) any elections such 
officers deem desirable regarding rebate of earnings to the United States for purposes of 
complying with Section 148 of the Code.  Such certificate shall be prepared in consultation with 
the Town’s bond counsel, and such elections shall be made after consultation with bond counsel. 

11. Limitation on Private Use.  The Town covenants that it shall not permit the 
proceeds of the Bonds or the facilities financed or refinanced therewith to be used in any manner 
that would result in more than (a) 5% of such proceeds or facilities being used in a trade or 
business carried on by any person other than a governmental unit, as provided in Section 141(b) 
of the Code, (b) 5% of such proceeds or facilities being used with respect to any output facility 
(other than a facility for the furnishing of water), within the meaning of Section 141(b)(4) of the 
Code, or (c) 5% of such proceeds being used directly or indirectly to make or finance loans to 
any persons other than a governmental unit, as provided in Section 141(c) of the Code; provided, 



6 

however, that if the Town receives an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel that any 
such covenants need not be complied with to prevent the interest on the Bonds from being 
includable in the gross income for federal income tax purposes of the registered owner thereof 
under existing law, the Town need not comply with such covenants. 

12. Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligation.  The Town designates the Bonds as 
“qualified tax-exempt obligations” for the purpose of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.  The Town 
represents and covenants as follows: 

(a) The Town will in no event designate more than $10,000,000 of 
obligations, including the Bonds, as qualified tax-exempt obligations in calendar year 2016 for 
the purpose of such Section 265(b)(3); 

(b) The Town, all its “subordinate entities,” within the meaning of such 
Section 265(b)(3), and all entities that issue tax-exempt obligations on behalf of the Town and its 
subordinate entities have not issued, when aggregated with the Bonds, more than $10,000,000 of 
tax-exempt obligations in calendar year 2016 (excluding for this purpose “private activity 
bonds,” within the meaning of Section 141 of the Code, other than “qualified 501(c)(3) bonds,” 
within the meaning of Section 145 of the Code); 

(c) Barring circumstances unforeseen as of the date of delivery of the Bonds, 
the Town will not issue tax-exempt obligations itself or approve the issuance of tax-exempt 
obligations of any of such other entities if the issuance of such tax-exempt obligations would, 
when aggregated with the Bonds and all other tax-exempt obligations theretofore issued by the 
Town and such other entities in calendar year 2016, result in the Town and such other entities 
having issued a total of more than $10,000,000 of tax-exempt obligations in calendar year 2016 
(excluding for this purpose private activity bonds other than qualified 501(c)(3) bonds); and 

(d) The Town has no reason to believe that the Town and such other entities 
will issue tax-exempt obligations in calendar year 2016 in an aggregate amount that will exceed 
such $10,000,000 limit. 

 Should the Town receive an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel that 
compliance with one or more of the covenants set forth in (a) and (c) above is not required for 
the Bonds to be qualified tax-exempt obligations, the Town need not comply with such 
covenant(s). 

13. Small Issuer Exemption from Rebate.  For purposes of the 2016A Bond, the 
Town Manager is authorized to elect into the small issuer exemption from rebate in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 148(f)(4)(D) of the Code if the Town Manager determines that the 
Town is able to meet the requirements for such exemption. 

14. Redemption of Prior Bond.  The Town Manager is authorized and directed to 
determine the principal amount of the 2014 Bond, if any, that shall be refunded, to take all proper 
steps to call for redemption such refunded portion on a date within 90 days of the issuance date 
of the 2016B Bond and to prepare and deliver any such redemption notices and correspondence 
necessary to effect the redemption.  The Town Manager is authorized to approve changes to the 
2014 Bond and related financing documents, including the execution and delivery of an allonge 
to the 2014 Bond, as may be necessary to provide for the unrefunded portion, if any, of the 2014 



7 

Bond.  The Town Clerk is authorized to affix the Town’s seal on any such documents and attest 
the same. 

15. SNAP Investment Authorization.  The Council has previously received and 
reviewed the Information Statement describing the State Non-Arbitrage Program of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia (“SNAP”) and the Contract Creating the State Non-Arbitrage 
Program Pool I (the “Contract”), and the Council hereby authorizes the Town Treasurer in her 
discretion to utilize SNAP in connection with the investment of the proceeds of the Bonds.  The 
Council acknowledges that the Treasury Board of the Commonwealth of Virginia is not, and 
shall not be, in any way liable to the Town in connection with SNAP, except as otherwise 
provided in the Contract. 

16. Provision of Financial Information.  The Town Manager or his designee is 
hereby authorized and directed to provide, for each fiscal year in which the Bonds remain 
outstanding, a copy of the Town’s comprehensive annual financial report to the registered owner 
of the Bonds. 

17. Other Actions.  All other actions of officers of the Town and the Council in 
conformity with the purposes and intent of this Resolution and in furtherance of the issuance and 
sale of the Bonds and the refunding of the Refunded Bond are ratified, approved and confirmed.  
The officers of the Town are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver all 
certificates and instruments and to take all such further action as may be considered necessary or 
desirable in connection with the issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds and the refunding of the 
Refunded Bond. 

18. Repeal of Conflicting Resolutions.  All resolutions or parts of resolutions in 
conflict herewith are repealed.  

19. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 



 

A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

FORM OF BOND 

REGISTERED REGISTERED 

No. R[A/B]-1 _______, 2016 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 

TOWN OF ALTAVISTA 

General Obligation [Public Improvement/Refunding] Bond 
Series 2016[A/B] 

The Town of Altavista, Virginia (the “Town”), for value received, promises to pay, to 
[________________] (the “Bank”), or its registered assigns or legal representative, the principal 
sum of  [___________________________________ DOLLARS ($____________)], together 
with interest from the date of this bond on the unpaid principal, at the rate of [____]% per year, 
calculated on the basis of a [360-day year of twelve 30-day months], subject to prepayment as 
hereinafter provided.  Installments of interest shall be payable semi-annually on [_________] 
and [_________], commencing [________], and installments of principal shall be payable 
annually on [__________], commencing [_________], in the amounts set forth on Schedule I 
attached hereto.  Principal of and interest on this bond are payable in lawful money of the United 
States of America. 

If the date on which any payment is due with respect to this bond is not a Business Day 
(as hereinafter defined), the payment shall be made on the next succeeding Business Day with 
the same force and effect as if made on the nominal date of payment.  “Business Day” shall 
mean a day on which banking business is transacted, but not including a Saturday, Sunday, legal 
holiday or any other day on which banking institutions are authorized or required by law to close 
in the Commonwealth of Virginia.  Principal and interest are payable in lawful money of the 
United States of America by the Town Treasurer, who has been appointed the initial paying 
agent and registrar for this bond (in both capacities, the “Registrar”). 

This bond is issued pursuant to the Constitution and statutes of the Commonwealth of 
Virginia, including the Town Charter and the Public Finance Act of 1991.  This bond has been 
authorized and issued pursuant to an ordinance and a resolution, both adopted by the Town 
Council of the Town (the “Council”) on January 26, 2016, to provide funds [(a) to finance capital 
improvements related to the Town’s water, sewer and stormwater systems, including without 
limitation the costs to extend, replace and improve the Town’s water and stormwater lines, (b) to 
refund [all or a portion] of the Town’s General Obligation Public Improvement Bond, Series 
2014 ([such refunded portion,] the “Refunded Bond”), and (c) to pay the costs of issuing this 
bond and refunding the Refunded Bond.] 



 

A-2 

[This bond is subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the Town in whole 
or in part at any time at a redemption price equal to ____% of the principal amount of this bond 
to be redeemed, together with any interest accrued and unpaid to the date fixed for redemption.] 

The full faith and credit of the Town are irrevocably pledged for the payment of principal 
of and interest on this bond.  Unless other funds are lawfully available and appropriated for 
timely payment of this bond, the Council shall levy and collect an annual ad valorem tax, over 
and above all other taxes authorized or limited by law and without limitation as to rate or 
amount, on all taxable property within the Town sufficient to pay when due the principal of and 
interest on this bond. 

The Town has designated this bond as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” for the 
purpose of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

The Registrar shall treat the registered owner of this bond as the person exclusively 
entitled to the payment of principal of and interest on this bond and the exercise of all rights and 
powers of the owner, except that interest payments shall be made to the person shown as the 
owner on the registration books on the last Business Day of the month preceding each payment 
date. 

All acts, conditions and things required by the Constitution and statutes of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia to happen, exist or be performed precedent to and in the issuance of 
this bond have happened, exist and have been performed, and this bond, together with all other 
indebtedness of the Town, is within every debt and other limit prescribed by the Constitution and 
statutes of the Commonwealth of Virginia. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town of Altavista, Virginia, has caused this bond to be 
to be signed by its [Mayor or Vice Mayor], its seal to be affixed hereto and attested by the [Town 
Clerk or Deputy Clerk], and this bond to be dated the date first written above. 

 
 
(SEAL)             
       [Vice] Mayor, Town of Altavista, Virginia 
 
 
       
[Deputy] Town Clerk, Town of Altavista, Virginia 



 

A-3 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned hereby sell(s), assign(s) and transfer(s) unto  

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
(Please print or type name and address, including zip code, of Transferee) 

PLEASE INSERT SOCIAL SECURITY OR OTHER 
IDENTIFYING NUMBER OF TRANSFEREE: 

______________________________________ 
:                                                                           : 
:                                                                           : 
:                                                                          : 

the within bond and all rights thereunder, hereby irrevocably constituting and appointing 
_____________________________________________________________________________, 
Attorney, to transfer said bond on the books kept for the registration thereof, with full power of 
substitution in the premises. 

Dated: _______________ 

Signature Guaranteed 

___________________________________ _________________________________ 
NOTICE:  Signature(s) must be guaranteed (Signature of Registered Owner) 
by an Eligible Guarantor Institution such as 
a Commercial Bank, Trust Company, NOTICE:  The signature above must 
Securities Broker/Dealer, Credit Union, or correspond with the name of the registered 
Savings Association who is a member of a  owner as it appears on the front of this bond 
medallion program approved by The  in every particular, without alteration or 
Securities Transfer Association, Inc.  enlargement or any change whatsoever. 

 



 

A-4 

TRANSFER OF BOND 

Transfer of this bond may be registered by the registered owner or its duly authorized 
attorney upon presentation hereof to the Registrar who shall make note of such transfer in books 
kept by the Registrar for that purpose and in the registration blank below. 

Date of Registration Name of Registered Owner Signature of Registrar 

____________________ ________________________ ______________________ 

____________________ ________________________ ______________________ 

____________________ ________________________ ______________________ 

____________________ ________________________ ______________________ 

 

 

 



 

I-1 

SCHEDULE I 

[Attach Amortization Schedule at Closing] 

35892.000011 EMF_US 58156120v9 



 
 

Town of Altavista, Virginia 
TERM SHEET 

January 11, 2016 
(For discussion purposes only) 

 
 
Borrower:  Town of Altavista, Virginia (the “Town”) 
 
Amount:  Up to $4,030,000 
    
Purpose: To refinance existing debt with Carter Bank used to finance water line improvements 

within the Town of Altavista (Series 2014 Bond)    
 
Loan Type:  Tax-Exempt, Bank Qualified Term Loan 
 
Loan Term:  18 ½ years  
 
Repayment: Demand, otherwise annual principal payments beginning July 15, 2016 and semi-

annual interest payments on January 15 and July 15, commencing July 15, 2016   
 

 Interest Rate: 2.75% 
 

Loan Fees:  None 
   
Collateral: Unsecured – General Obligation pledge of The Town of Altavista, VA  
 
Prepayment 
Penalty: None 
 
Guarantors: None 
 
Reporting 
Requirements: Town of Altavista, VA to provide annual audited financial statements.   
 
 
Other:   Loan documents are to be approved by the Bank and executed properly. 
 

Bond Counsel will give the customary opinion as to authorization, validity, permits and 
other matters requested by the Bank.  A satisfactory opinion of bond counsel approved 
by First National Bank as to bank qualification and the exclusion of interest from gross 
income for Federal and State income taxes will be necessary at or prior to closing.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Term Sheet 
Town of Altavista 
January 11, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 
 
    
 
 
Other (continued): A General Obligation resolution approved by the Town Council  
 
 A statement that no material adverse change in financial condition has occurred since 

June 30, 2015 
  

Other usual and customary requirements for loans of this type. 
 

 
 

 
Submitted By: _____________________ 
 Shawn D Stone  
 Vice President 
 First National Bank 
 
 

Disclaimer 
                This Term Sheet is presented to the above-referenced borrower in connection with a credit facility proposed by First National Bank.  This Term Sheet 

describes some of the basic terms proposed to be included in loan documents between the Bank and the borrower.  This Term Sheet is for discussion 
purposes only and is not a commitment, nor does it purport to summarize all of the conditions, covenants, representations, warranties, events of default or 
other provisions that may be contained in documents required to consummate this financing.  The terms are subject to standard credit underwriting and 
approval and to negotiation and execution of loan documents in form and substance satisfactory to the Bank and its counsel.  This Term Sheet is confidential 
and may not be disclosed to third parties without prior consent of the Bank.  





























 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

             
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

  
Meeting Date:  January 26, 2015 

 
 

INTRODUCTIONS AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
 

• A representative from Woodward & Curran will be present to give an update on the 
implementation of Phase 1 of the SCADA project at the Water Treatment Plant. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Budget/Funding:    N/A 
 
Legal Evaluation:  The Town Attorney will be available to address legal issues. 
 
Attachments:     None 
 
 
 
Council Recommendations: 
 
   Additional Work Session  Regular Meeting      No Action 

Consensus Poll on Action  ____(Aye)  ____(Nay) 
 

Town of Altavista, Virginia 
Work Session Agenda Form 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

             
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

  
Meeting Date:  January 26, 2015 

 
 

Agenda Item:  Revenue discussion – FY2017 Budget 
 
Summary:   As staff prepares the FY2017 Draft Budget an opportunity exists to have input from 
Town Council in regard to the local revenue streams and if changes should be made or new sources 
researched.   Over the past five years, the Town has increased the utility rates by 5% annually, which 
has assisted the Town with providing adequate funding for the operations in the Enterprise Fund 
(Water & Sewer).    In the past, the Town had utilized General Fund revenue to supplement the 
Enterprise Fund.    
 
Attached is information regarding the “Top Ten” revenue sources for the Town of Altavista.  In 
addition, the sources that Town Council controls through the ability to adjust the rate are further 
explored, those sources include in the General Fund: Property Tax (Real Estate); Personal Property 
Tax; Machinery & Tools Tax; Meals Tax, and the BPOL Tax, and in the Enterprise Fund: Water Rates 
(Industrial and Business & Residential) and Sewer Rates (Industrial and Business & Residential). 
 
In addition, there may be other revenue sources that Town Council may wish for staff to evaluate.  
One such is the cigarette tax, which the Town of Appomattox implemented (effective October 1, 
2014) and generated $187, 525 the remainder of FY2015 and has generated $41,250 for the first 
quarter of FY2016.  The cigarette tax is collected by selling stamps to merchants who place them on 
the cigarette packages. 
 
 
 
 
 
Budget/Funding:    Funding if provided in the FY2016 Adopted Budget. 
 
Legal Evaluation:  The Town Attorney will be available to address legal issues. 
 
Attachments:     Top Ten Revenue Sources, General Fund Revenue Sources, and Enterprise Fund  
    Revenue Sources. 
 
 
Council Recommendations: 
 
   Additional Work Session  Regular Meeting      No Action 

Consensus Poll on Action  ____(Aye)  ____(Nay) 
 

Town of Altavista, Virginia 
Work Session Agenda Form 

 
 



GENERAL FUND REVENUE   (Top Ten List) 
  

        
  

   
FY2016 FY2015 FY2014 FY2013 FY2012   

        
  

Prop. Taxes (Real Prop.) $ 375,000 $ 380,936 $ 419,520 $ 413,378 $ 410,800   

        
  

Public Service  - Real & 
Pers. $ 165,000 $ 164,860 $ 86,631 $ 61,603 $ 62,700   

        
  

Personal Property 
 

$ 195,000 $ 211,015 $ 219,418 $ 205,575 $ 204,500   

        
  

PPTRA 
  

$ 100,000 $ 103,884 $ 107,581 $ 112,851 $ 103,000   

        
  

Mach. & Tools 
 

$ 1,487,200 $ 1,487,193 $ 1,518,419 $ 1,470,339 $ 1,462,800   

        
  

Local Sales & Use Taxes $ 145,000 $ 152,869 $ 156,431 $ 147,796 $ 131,500   

        
  

Local Electric & Gas 
Taxes $ 110,000 $ 109,382 $ 115,876 $ 111,893 $ 112,000   

        
  

Local Bank Stock Taxes $ 160,000 $ 153,787 $ 158,591 $ 160,104 $ 159,600   

        
  

Local Meal Taxes 
 

$ 690,000 $ 721,364 $ 668,660 $ 682,194 $ 639,600   

        
  

BPOL (All Cats.) 
 

$ 153,000 $ 161,720 $ 153,892 $ 162,552 $ 170,400   

        
  

        
  

Top Ten Total: 
 

$ 3,580,200 $ 3,647,010 $ 3,605,019 $ 3,528,285 $ 3,456,900   

        
  

 

  
  
  
  

        
          

        
 



FIVE YEAR COMPARISON OF MAJOR LOCAL REVENUE 
SOURCES 

      
            
   Budget 

FY2016 
 Actual 

FY2015 
 Actual 

FY2014 
 Actual 

FY2013 
 Actual 

FY2012        
   

(+/-) (+/-) (+/-) (+/-) 

            Prop. Taxes (Real 
Prop.)  $      375,000  -1.56%  $      380,936  -9.20%  $     419,520  1.49%  $      413,378  0.63%  $     410,800  

            Personal 
Property 

 
 $      195,000  -7.59%  $      211,015  -3.83%  $     219,418  6.73%  $      205,575  0.53%  $     204,500  

            Mach. & Tools 
 

 $  1,487,200  0.00%  $   1,487,193  -2.06%  $  1,518,419  3.27%  $  1,470,339  0.52%  $  1,462,800  

            Local Meal 
Taxes 

 
 $      690,000  -4.35%  $      721,364  7.88%  $     668,660  -1.98%  $      682,194  6.66%  $     639,600  

            BPOL (All 
Cats.) 

 
 $      153,000  -5.39%  $      161,720  5.09%  $     153,892  -5.33%  $      162,552  -4.61%  $     170,400  

            
            
            
   

 $  2,900,200  -2.09%  $   2,962,228  -0.59%  $  2,979,909  1.56%  $  2,934,038  1.59%  $  2,888,100  
                    
          

Total Change                  0.42%         2.57%               3.15%       1.59%  

  



 

 

 

 

$410,800 

$413,378 

$419,520 

$380,936 
$375,000 

$350,000 

$360,000 

$370,000 

$380,000 

$390,000 

$400,000 

$410,000 

$420,000 

$430,000 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 

REAL ESTATE TAX REVENUE - 5 Year Period 

$204,500 

$205,575 

$219,418 

$211,015 

$195,000 

$180,000 

$185,000 

$190,000 

$195,000 

$200,000 

$205,000 

$210,000 

$215,000 

$220,000 

$225,000 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 

PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX REVENUE - 5 Year Period  



 

 

 

 

$1,462,800 
$1,470,339 

$1,518,419 

$1,487,193 

$1,487,200 

$1,430,000 

$1,440,000 

$1,450,000 

$1,460,000 

$1,470,000 

$1,480,000 

$1,490,000 

$1,500,000 

$1,510,000 

$1,520,000 

$1,530,000 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 

MACHINERY & TOOL TAX REVENUE - 5 Year Period 

$639,600 

$682,194 

$668,660 

$721,364 

$690,000 

$580,000 

$600,000 

$620,000 

$640,000 

$660,000 

$680,000 

$700,000 

$720,000 

$740,000 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 

MEALS TAX REVENUE - 5 Year Period 



 

Town of Altavista 
     Tax Assessments  
     

   Assessed  
Values 

  Tax  
Revenue FY 

Tax 
Year Tax Type % Change  Rates / $100  

 
2015 Machinery & Tools 77,502,074.00 4.21  $          2.00   $     1,550,041.48  

2015 2014 Machinery & Tools 74,374,493.00 -2.62  $          2.00   $     1,487,489.86  
2014 2013 Machinery & Tools 76,375,351.00 3.90  $          2.00   $     1,527,507.02  
2013 2012 Machinery & Tools 73,511,675.00 0.51  $          2.00   $     1,470,233.50  
2012 2011 Machinery & Tools 73,138,932.00 -1.11  $          2.00   $     1,462,778.64  
2011 2010 Machinery & Tools 73,959,497.00 8.58  $          2.00   $     1,479,189.94  
2010 2009 Machinery & Tools 68,117,647.00 0.24  $          2.00   $     1,362,352.94  
2009 2008 Machinery & Tools 67,956,119.00 3.61  $          2.00   $     1,359,122.38  
2008 2007 Machinery & Tools 65,590,215.00 1.49  $          2.00   $     1,311,804.30  
2007 2006 Machinery & Tools 64,625,583.00 

 
 $          2.00   $     1,292,511.66  

 

FY 
Tax 
Year Tax Type Assessed Value % Change  Rates / $100      Tax Revenue 

2016 2015 Personal Property 15,999,269.00 -0.09  $              2.00   $        319,985.38  
2015 2014 Personal Property 16,013,418.00 0.08  $              2.00   $        320,268.36  
2014 2013 Personal Property 16,001,280.00 -3.29  $              2.00   $        320,025.60  
2013 2012 Personal Property 16,546,059.00 7.47  $              2.00   $        330,921.18  
2012 2011 Personal Property 15,396,532.00 1.30  $              2.00   $        307,930.64  
2011 2010 Personal Property 15,199,581.00 10.45  $              2.00   $        303,991.62  
2010 2009 Personal Property 13,761,851.00 1.81  $              2.00   $        275,237.02  
2009 2008 Personal Property 13,516,689.00 -0.68  $              2.00   $        270,333.78  
2008 2007 Personal Property 13,609,011.00 -5.11  $              2.00   $        272,180.22  
2007 2006 Personal Property 14,341,354.00 

 
 $              2.00   $        286,827.08  

       
           **NOTE Does not include PPTRA  

     



Town of Altavista 
Tax Assessments  
 

FY Tax Year Tax Type Assessed Value % Change  Rates / $100      Tax Revenue 
2016 2015 Real Estate 276,103,093.00 2.03 $              0.144  $        397,588.45  
2015 2014 Real Estate 270,608,733.00 1.52 $               0.144  $        389,676.58  
2014 2013 Real Estate 266,568,333.00 0.11 $               0.16  $        426,509.33  
2013 2012 Real Estate 266,266,033.00 0.79  $              0.16   $        426,025.65  
2012 2011 Real Estate 264,190,533.00 2.93  $              0.16   $        422,704.85  
2011 2010 Real Estate 256,672,175.00 -0.48 $               0.165  $        423,509.09  
2010 2009 Real Estate 257,899,946.00 0.44 $               0.165  $        425,534.91  
2009 2008 Real Estate 256,763,446.00 0.88 $               0.165  $        423,659.69  
2008 2007 Real Estate 254,522,446.00 22.40 $               0.165  $        419,962.04  
2007 2006 Real Estate 207,944,262.00 

 
$               0.20  $        415,888.52  

**NOTE Does not include Elderly Relief 
     

Town of Altavista 
   Tax Assessments  
   

  
Total Revenue (M&T, RE & PP) Annual Change Total Change 

2016 
 

 $            2,267,615.31  3.19% 13.65% 
2015 

 
 $            2,197,434.80  -3.37% 10.13% 

2014 
 

 $            2,274,041.95  2.10% 13.97% 
2013 

 
 $            2,227,180.33  1.54% 11.63% 

2012 
 

 $            2,193,414.13  -0.60% 9.93% 
2011 

 
 $            2,206,690.65  6.96% 10.60% 

2010 
 

 $            2,063,124.87  0.49% 3.40% 
2009 

 
 $            2,053,115.85  2.45% 2.90% 

2008 
 

 $            2,003,946.56  0.44% 0.44% 
2007 

 
 $            1,995,227.26  

   



 

 

$788,000 $802,774 $813,723 
$897,341 $904,000 

$1,080,800 $1,077,035 
$1,160,321 $1,169,628 $1,187,400 

$0 

$200,000 

$400,000 

$600,000 

$800,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,200,000 

$1,400,000 

Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 

Enterprise Fund (Utilities) Revenue - INDUSTRIAL  

Industrial (W) Industrial (S) 

$197,900 
$217,215 

$267,222 

$298,513 

$294,000 

$204,000 
$221,920 

$267,407 

$293,485 $291,000 

$0 

$50,000 

$100,000 

$150,000 

$200,000 

$250,000 

$300,000 

$350,000 

Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 

Enterprise Fund (Utilities) Revenue - Business & Residential 

Bus./Res. (Water) Bus./Res. (Sewer) 



 

 

 

$124,354 $127,590 $132,678 
$143,429 $136,000 

$2,100 $1,952 $1,927 $2,165 $2,000 
$0 

$20,000 

$40,000 

$60,000 

$80,000 

$100,000 

$120,000 

$140,000 

$160,000 

Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 

Enterpise Fund (Utilities) - Outside of Town limits 

Out (Water) Out (Sewer) 

$2,399,254 
$2,450,438 

$2,645,205 
$2,806,726 

$2,816,400 

$2,100,000.00 

$2,200,000.00 

$2,300,000.00 

$2,400,000.00 

$2,500,000.00 

$2,600,000.00 

$2,700,000.00 

$2,800,000.00 

$2,900,000.00 

FY2012 FY2014 FY2016 FY2018 FY2020 

Utility Rate Revenues (Total) - 5 year period 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

             
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

  
Meeting Date:  January 26, 2015 

 
 

Agenda Item:  Zoning Ordinance Amendment (Keeping of Chickens) 
 
Summary:   Previously Town Council received and reviewed the proposed Zoning Ordinance 
Amendments recommended by the Planning Commission that would allow the keeping of chickens in 
the town limits.   Staff was asked to review and offer any recommendations on changes to the 
ordinance.  After discussion at the January Town Council meeting, staff was requested to incorporate 
the changes proposed and bring back a draft ordinance.  The draft ordinance is attached for your 
review. 
 
 
 
 
Budget/Funding:    N/A 
 
Legal Evaluation:  The Town Attorney will be available to address legal issues. 
 
Attachments:     Ordinance (With changes marked and Without markings)  
 
 
Staff seeks direction on this item, below are some options: 
 

• Place the revised ordinance on Council’s February 9th agenda for “First Reading” and 
schedule a Public Hearing at the March 8th Town Council meeting. 
 

• Council may discuss and propose additional changes to the ordinance.    
 

• Take No Action. 
 
 
Council Recommendations: 
 
   Additional Work Session  Regular Meeting      No Action 

Consensus Poll on Action  ____(Aye)  ____(Nay) 
 

Town of Altavista, Virginia 
Work Session Agenda Form 

 
 







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

             
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

  
Meeting Date:  January 26, 2015 

 
 

Agenda Item:  Solid Waste truck purchase 
 
Summary:   Per the attached memorandum, staff is providing an update as to the purchase of a new 
solid waste truck.  The funding for the vehicle is included in the FY2016 Adopted Budget.   No action 
is needed; staff is providing this information as an update. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Budget/Funding:    Funding for this item is provided in the FY2016 Adopted Budget. 
 
Legal Evaluation:  The Town Attorney will be available to address legal issues. 
 
Attachments:     Staff memo with attachment. 
 
 
 
 
Council Recommendations: 
 
   Additional Work Session  Regular Meeting      No Action 

Consensus Poll on Action  ____(Aye)  ____(Nay) 
 

Town of Altavista, Virginia 
Work Session Agenda Form 

 
 







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

             
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

  
Meeting Date:  January 26, 2015 

 
 

Agenda Item:  American Legion Post 36 – Purple Heart Monument 
 
Summary:   Mr. Paul Brooks with American Legion Post 36 contacted staff about the possibility of 
establishing a Purple Heart monument at the War Memorial located in the Trade Lot parking lot area.   
Mr. Brooks indicated that they are working on what such a monument would look like at this site but 
wanted to see if Town Council was willing to allow the monument before proceeding.   
 
 
 
 
Budget/Funding:    N/A 
 
Legal Evaluation:  The Town Attorney will be available to address legal issues. 
 
Attachments:     Photo of War Memorial  
 
 
Staff recommends directing the Town Manager to work with American Legion Post 36 in regard to 
this request.  The actual monument design and proposed location would be brought back at a later date 
for approval of Town Council. 
 
 
Council Recommendations: 
 
   Additional Work Session  Regular Meeting      No Action 

Consensus Poll on Action  ____(Aye)  ____(Nay) 
 

Town of Altavista, Virginia 
Work Session Agenda Form 

 
 


	01 January 26_2016_Work Session
	02 WS Agenda Item 4A_Project 1B Financing_Public Hearing
	02a Memo to Council RE Funding Update for Project 1B
	02b Proj 1B_Summary of Bank Loan Bids
	02c Altavista - 2016 GO - Ordinance_58157321_4
	1. Attached hereto is a true, correct and complete copy of an ordinance entitled “ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT BONDS OF THE TOWN OF ALTAVISTA, VIRGINIA, IN A PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2,750,000” (th...
	2. The Council meeting at which the Ordinance was adopted was held at the time and place established by the Council for its regular meetings.
	3. The minutes of such meeting reflect the attendance of the members and their votes on the Ordinance as follows:
	4. The Ordinance has not been repealed, revoked, rescinded or amended and is in full force and effect on the date hereof.
	1. It is determined to be necessary and expedient for the Town to finance the Project and to borrow funds for such purpose and issue the Town’s general obligation public improvement bonds to obtain such funds.
	2. Pursuant to the Public Finance Act of 1991 and the Town Charter, there are authorized to be issued general obligation public improvement bonds of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $2,750,000 to provide funds, together with other availabl...
	3. The bonds shall bear such date or dates, mature at such time or times not exceeding 40 years from their date or dates, bear interest at such rate or rates, be in such denominations and form, be executed in such manner and be sold at such time or ti...
	4. The bonds shall be general obligations of the Town, and its full faith and credit shall be irrevocably pledged to the payment of principal of and premium, if any, and interest on such bonds.
	5. The Town Clerk, in collaboration with the Town Attorney, is authorized and directed to see to the immediate filing of a certified copy of this Ordinance in the Circuit Court of Campbell County, Virginia.
	6. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately.


	02d Altavista - 2016 GO - Bond Resolution_58156120_9
	1. Attached hereto is a true, correct and complete copy of a resolution entitled “RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE, SALE AND AWARD OF ONE OR MORE SERIES OF GENERAL OBLIGATION PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AND REFUNDING BONDS OF THE TOWN OF ALTAVISTA, VIRGIN...
	2. The Council meeting at which the Resolution was adopted was held at the time and place established by the Council for its regular meetings.
	3. The minutes of such meeting reflect the attendance of the members and their votes on the Resolution as follows:
	4. The Resolution has not been repealed, revoked, rescinded or amended and is in full force and effect on the date hereof.
	1. Issuance and Sale.  Pursuant to the Constitution and statutes of the Commonwealth of Virginia, including the Public Finance Act of 1991 and the Town Charter, the Council hereby provides for the issuance and sale of (a) the 2016A Bond in an aggregat...
	2. Bond Details.  The Council hereby authorizes the Town Manager to determine when and if to issue the Bonds and the final terms thereof, all as he shall deem to be in the best interests of the Town and subject to the following parameters.  As such, t...
	3. Redemption Provisions.  The Bonds may be subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the Town, in whole or in part at any time and without penalty, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, plus intere...
	4. Pledge of Full Faith and Credit.  The full faith and credit of the Town are irrevocably pledged for the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds.  Unless other funds are lawfully available and appropriated for timely payment of the Bonds, ...
	5. Execution and Form.  The Bonds shall be signed by the manual signature of the Mayor or Vice Mayor, and the Town’s seal shall be affixed thereto and attested by the manual signature of the Town Clerk (such term as used in this Resolution to include ...
	6. Registration, Transfer and Owner of Bonds.  The Bonds shall be issued in registered form without coupons, payable to the registered holder or its registered assigns.  The Council hereby appoints the Town Treasurer as the initial paying agent and re...
	7. Preparation and Delivery of the Bonds.  The officers of the Town are hereby authorized and directed to take all proper steps to have the Bonds prepared and executed in accordance with their terms and to deliver the Bonds to the purchasers upon paym...
	8. Mutilated, Lost or Destroyed Bonds.  If one or both Bonds has been mutilated, lost or destroyed, the Town officers authorized under Section 5 above to execute the original Bonds shall execute and deliver a new Bond of like date and tenor in exchang...
	9. Arbitrage Covenants.

	(b) The Town covenants that it shall not take or omit to take any action the taking or omission of which will cause the Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), or o...
	10. Non-Arbitrage Certificate and Elections.  Such officers of the Town as may be requested by the Town’s bond counsel are hereby authorized and directed to execute an appropriate certificate setting forth (a) the expected use and investment of the pr...
	11. Limitation on Private Use.  The Town covenants that it shall not permit the proceeds of the Bonds or the facilities financed or refinanced therewith to be used in any manner that would result in more than (a) 5% of such proceeds or facilities bein...
	12. Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligation.  The Town designates the Bonds as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for the purpose of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.  The Town represents and covenants as follows:
	(a) The Town will in no event designate more than $10,000,000 of obligations, including the Bonds, as qualified tax-exempt obligations in calendar year 2016 for the purpose of such Section 265(b)(3);
	(b) The Town, all its “subordinate entities,” within the meaning of such Section 265(b)(3), and all entities that issue tax-exempt obligations on behalf of the Town and its subordinate entities have not issued, when aggregated with the Bonds, more tha...
	(c) Barring circumstances unforeseen as of the date of delivery of the Bonds, the Town will not issue tax-exempt obligations itself or approve the issuance of tax-exempt obligations of any of such other entities if the issuance of such tax-exempt obli...
	(d) The Town has no reason to believe that the Town and such other entities will issue tax-exempt obligations in calendar year 2016 in an aggregate amount that will exceed such $10,000,000 limit.

	13. Small Issuer Exemption from Rebate.  For purposes of the 2016A Bond, the Town Manager is authorized to elect into the small issuer exemption from rebate in accordance with the provisions of Section 148(f)(4)(D) of the Code if the Town Manager dete...
	14. Redemption of Prior Bond.  The Town Manager is authorized and directed to determine the principal amount of the 2014 Bond, if any, that shall be refunded, to take all proper steps to call for redemption such refunded portion on a date within 90 da...
	15. SNAP Investment Authorization.  The Council has previously received and reviewed the Information Statement describing the State Non-Arbitrage Program of the Commonwealth of Virginia (“SNAP”) and the Contract Creating the State Non-Arbitrage Progra...
	16. Provision of Financial Information.  The Town Manager or his designee is hereby authorized and directed to provide, for each fiscal year in which the Bonds remain outstanding, a copy of the Town’s comprehensive annual financial report to the regis...
	17. Other Actions.  All other actions of officers of the Town and the Council in conformity with the purposes and intent of this Resolution and in furtherance of the issuance and sale of the Bonds and the refunding of the Refunded Bond are ratified, a...
	18. Repeal of Conflicting Resolutions.  All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are repealed.
	19. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

	02e Term Sheet - Town of Altavista 1-11-16
	Guarantors: None
	Disclaimer

	02f Refund Series 2014_Refinance of 4.1 mil
	02g Ads_Jan 13 and 20_Public Hearing
	03 WS Agenda Item 5a_Presentations
	04 WS Agenda Item 6A_FY2017 Revenue Discussion
	04a Top Ten Revenue Sources
	04b Town of Altavista_Tax Revenue Comparison
	04c Utility Revenues_Charts
	05 WS Agenda Item 6B_Zoning Ordinance Amendments_ Keeping of Chickens
	05a Chicken ordinances
	06 WS Agenda Item 6C_Solid Waste Truck procurement
	06a Memo to Council_Refuse Truck
	07 WS Agenda Item 6D_AMerican Legion Post Reqeust_Monument

